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WRIGHT, J.

The question for determination in this case is whether the
summary dismissal of tie plaintiff by the deifendant on the ground of his
continued intermittent absence from work {(alheit mest occasions of absence
were justified by him ~n the ground of ill-health and werc supported by
medical cexrtificates) was or was not justifiable, Contending that the
dismissal was wrongful the plaintiff sceks rcdress in the nature of -

(a2) Ieos of salary in licu of notice

(b) Damages for wrongful dismissal

(c) Redundancy payments.
Deonying the plaintifflts claim the defendant maintains that the plaintiff
was dismissed without notice because of his poox attondance and personnel
record. In argument it was made clear that the plaintiff's ability to
pexzform while on the job is not in issue:

The resolution of the problem is not xendercd any easier by the

appcarance of some amount of confusion in the plaintiff's camp. Paragraphs 8

9 and 10 of the Statement of Claim are as follows:

3. The Plaintiff maintains that such dismissal was
invalid and/or alternatively contrary to the terms of
his cmployment, whether cxpressed or implied.
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Aedundancy Payments) Let and/or that the recuisite
netice was not given.

10. t was an implicd term of tle contyracht of
cunloyment, that in the event of severance, tie
Plaintiff would receive payment computed on no less
favourable a basis than that which applies tc members
of the Unionised staff covered by the Labour lLgreee-
ment between the NMational Torkers Union and the
Defendant.

The PRAdaintiff will in the course cf the trial
refer to the said agrecment for its full terms and
cffects, and in order to dectermine the provisions
properly applicable to the Plaintiff in the events
which have transpired, ®

In opening the plaintiff's case Mr. Patterson said -

“Ls is not uncommon for purposes of union representation
distinction is made between the supervisory catagory
and other members of staff who are represented by the
i1.i1.U, -~ all unicnisced staff.

The supervisory staff not members of any Trade Union
but the basic terms governing unicnised staff apply
insofar as they cen te the supervisory staff as tic
tomas for the basic ninimum texms of their employment.
o written term of agreciont Detween the cmplovers
and tle supcervisory staff -~ none in respect of the

plaintiff thougl: Lie amoluments were clearly stipulatec.”

d !

T plaintiff in lLis covidcence saild that oltlougi: from timc to time tiere
g : T R ’

. . . - .

were Collective Labour sgreements in respoct of ﬁhe unioniééd stasdf such
agreements did nct include the superviscry staff and there were no such
agreements regarding the latter category. In this he was confirmed by a
copy of the Collective Labour Agreement (Exhibit 2) which tock effect on
February 1, 1981 paragraph 5 of which states inter alia -

"mhis Agreement shall apply only to regular hourly

rated employees engaged by the company dircctly

in the Company's operations, etc.” ‘
This provision effectively nullifies paragraph 10 of the Statcment of Claim
and forced lir. Patterson to announce abandonment of reliance thercon. It was
expected that when tic trial was resumed aftoxr adjournment on the third day
that witnesses would be callced to f£ill the lacuna. However, on resumption
on June 3, 1985 a Supplemental Agreed Dundke was filed which iix. Patterson

sald cbviated the nocessity to call further evidence and on that note the
plaintiff's casc was clesed without Lis attention being drawn to any of the ?
contents of this latest bundle. |

In this Supplemental Dundlce are Zour documents -
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2 lettexs from the opposing parties (pp. 7 = 3)

1 document dated 2.3.72 -~ dealing with the subject =~
ENPLOYMENT TERMINATION - SILARIED EMPLOYEES (pp. 1 = 4).

1 docunment dated 19.10.79 from 11.T. Chaplin, General
llanager, dealing with the subject -~ PROCLEM HANDLING -
SALARIED #iPLOYEES and addressced to 11 Salaried
Employees, ilpart -~ Main (pp. 5 ~ 6}.
Altliough the plaintiff gave no evidence rogarding these documents (pp. 1 ~ 6)
Mr. Patterson submitted that tlhey represent tihe standaxd practice relating
te salaried staff and are the express terms of the amployment®, Further
refgrence will be madc to thesce documents. The present purpose is to
highlight the difficulty in identifying the tecrms, cxpress or implied, of
the plaintiff's employment. In this regard it is apposite tc include
paxagraph 6 of the Defence which in addition to denving paragraph 8 of
the Statement of Clair veads -
wre defendant says that it was an express and/ox
implied term of the said contract of service between
itself and the Defendant that the lattexr would he

entitled to dismiss the Plaintiff without notice or
payment in lieu thercof for misconduct or other just

~anga shown. "

Such a pleading envisicns the adducing of evidence of express provisions

or a system employed by thic Company and kncwn to the plaintiff against

the background of which he accepted oxr continued in the cmployment. Moxe
cf this anon. The endeavour is rendered even mexe keen by the Court

having been alerted by the parties that the cade is not without significance
in the field of Industrial felations by the fact tlat tihere is nc previcus
local ajudication on tie issue involved.

The plaintiff's amployment to the defendant company was terminated
by Inter-Office Memo dated 1l4th Scptember, 1981 witl: effect from 12th
September, 1981. It reads -

"Effective September 12, 19801, your services with
Alpert as Supervisor in Slurry iix Section are
texminated.

This decision is based on the fact that your
Personncl Recoxd over the years has not been good.

Recently, you presented a sick certificate for two
(2) days adding to your pocr attendance roccrd, which
has created undue hardship to your peers who in mest
cases have to werlk extra hours in filling your vacant
position. ™
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He was then Section Shift Supervisor with respensibilities stated by him
as follows:

T supcrvised the total running of my section on a
rotaking basis. I now supervisce supervisors =~

2 Drea Supervisors
2 Control Board Technicians
I supexvised three (3) wexk shifts -

12 rid-night -~ 8.00 a.a.

0 c.me - 4,00 p.m.
4 pes. = 12 midnight.®

To all appearances a very responsible post. and indecd this is so as
. Plper took care to emphasize in cutlining the casc for the defence.
Said he -

"Zach shift in each Section is manned by a crew
of approximately 5 -~ 6 men - Lourly paid workers.
There are different Secticns in cach department
and in particular the production department.

Bach cxow has a Supervisor who is responsible for
the management of production in the Section during
his shift. The role of the Supervisor is a very
inmportant one to the Cecmpany and tihe Supervisor

in that capacity is responsible for ensuring
continuity in production ensuring that the system
under which the company ag a wiole, as well as cach
membor of lis crew operates is safic and that they
follow all safety procedures sct down by the Company.

The Superviscr is alse responsible at the commencement
of the shift to teke cver from the previous Supervisox
and at the end of his shift to hand over operation to
the new Supervisor taking over.

The defendant therefore places a great deal of
responsibility ion Supervisors and relies upon thaonm
beti: for managing the operaticn during eaclh: shift and
for attending to do so. ¥

such then was the position «f prominence cccupied by tie plaintiff.

[4p]

Having joined the Coppany cn 17th March, 1969 as an Ilumina Plant workexr-
trainee he was trained and promoted througli the ranks. Confirmed as a Plant
worlier after three (3) mecnths he occupied that position for two (2) vears
and then left the unicnised group when he was promcted to Plant Technician.
He reached his final position via the positiocns of Shift Superviscr (1973)
and Arca Shift Supervigor. 5 Scction shift Supervisor he was responsible

for the Slurry Mix.
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by means of Perfcrmance Reviews ~ some quarterly. some annually -
the Company kept a check cn the progress cf employces including the plaintiff
and although his on=~the-jciy performance is not in issue, Mr. Patterson
submitted that in considering whether the plaintiff had been fairly dealt
witl: the complaint of abhsenteceism should be viowed against the background
of such performancco. but, retorted the defendant, what is the value to the
company Qf even a capable amployec who 1is not thore to perform at the time
e is required to pexform? ind who could deubt the validity of this aspect
of the mattexr? Several of the plaintiff's Pexicrmance Reviews ave included
in the Agreed Bundle of Docurents which disclosc fox the most part that he
was a capable employee perforning commendably when in accustomed areas.

His standard was observed to fall usually whilc he was in a new arca and
before he had mastered it. His suitability for promction was generally
recommended, but even on such occasions complaint would be made about the
level cof absenteeism whicl: he was advised to ilnprovao. It is obhserved that
where appropriate there was provision fox counselling with the employee

in an endeavour to coverccnce any obscrved deficits.

However, the full extent of his a2bsenteeism is disclosed not by
the Performance Reviews but by the Medical Cextificates which were
faithfully submitted to account for his absences. #~Apart from an out-
Patient Record which slews 65 visits for the poericd 21.10.71 - 11.9.81
there arc 50 medical certificates coVering tle period 21.5.70 - 11.9.51.
However, Mr., Williams thinks there should be a cut-off pexriod going back
nc earliexr than 1977 - quita a concession. On that basis the medical

certificates would account for absences as folle

WS g
1978 - 23 days - 11% ratc
1975 - 5C days - 213
19380 - 11 Jdays - 5% @
Up to 11.9.15381 - 33 days - 245 0"

This represents an average rate of absenteeism of 15% cover the period
Januaxry 1970 -~ 1llth Scptembexr, 1901, In cross—coxamination on this aspect

of the case the plaintiff agreed that for a Supervisor anything above a
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rate of 6% was poor and above 10% was very poor. In addition to the
abscnces accounted for by the medical certificates the plaintiff testified
of an absence of 12 days during 1979 occasicned by an cperation performed by
. G. Rllen, a company doctor, in the Hargreaves Hospital because of a
ganglion on his wrist.
Having regard to the frequency of the plaintiff's ahsence fron
work and the variety of illnesses certified the company was presented with
wo options. The first cpticn was to challenge tixc genuiness of the
certificates and if these proved successful charge the plaintiff with
malingering. 'To do so, however, would give risce tc another problem
because such a course would involve impeaching the credit c¢f the company's
own doctors whe had issued zome of those cerxrtificeotes. 8o understandably
it did not adopt that course. The second option, and the one adopted
was to accept the certificates as genuine and then scch to justify the
dismissal of the plaintiff on the strength of his oun case. BDut in addition
to that care was teken to demonstrate that neot cnly in his health but in
tig attitude as well the plaintiff was uﬁhealthy. As 1f incapable in
assessing the implicaticns of his answers or elsc afraid to admit the
txuth, the plaintiff testifying under cross-exanination insisted that
no problem was crcated by the failure of hourly paid workers turning up
for work on their shift because the workers con the previcus shift would
work for another shift -~ 16 hours &bAstretch. And this in an industry
whexe safety was dpoemdded a vory high priority. Dut; then he had to admit
that the managemant would be concerned., To him it was alsc no probleti
if a Supervisor failed to report when he should, The cut-going Supervisor
would carry on for ancthexr 8 hours, Cf course tie management did not
share his views, which; if the embarrassment that accompanied his answors
is anything tc go by, wvore palpably dishonest. The company was solicitous
of his health. He adnits that both orally and by inter-office memos
the Company's concern was expressed. The following memos demonstrate
the company's attitude quite clearly dating from as far back as

4th Jganuary, 1977:



"oulbject : fLbsence frcom lork

“Your record of absence frem werk has become a majox
concern for us. Since fwugust 1976, you have been
abscnt for a total cf nincteen (19) days (sce attachment).

I am concerned abcut your state of health and am
recommending that whenever you are sick again, you report
to the Alpart Clinic for medical examination.

< \, GF/fm

Attachments (3) Iliedical Certificates®.
“hugust 20, 1979
Subject ; Performance

*nlthough I have spoken to you on several occasicns about
your perfcrmance, I have noticed that it has got from
had to worse.

On ronday August 13 I came to your office and inquired
about the steam line up to the 'C' Digestion injection
heater. Your recply was nothing short of being
cbnoxicus. BAmong some cf the things you said was that
. someone must have isclated it, and you want to kncw
( i why cvery time ycu werce having your lunch someonc had
‘ to bother you about the work.

on Tuesday l4th dugust I asked what you werce doing about
the high L-? temperatures. Your reply was that the
Clarification pexscnnel were not co~cperating re: the
flow adjustment. I askaed if you informed anyone of the
problem and youx reply was; ‘it would not ma%e any
difference, "

Since February 1979 ycu have been absent from the job
two days without pemmission and twenty days due to
illness. It is cobvious that ycu have a very serious
nedical probdem. I will be too willing to arrange a
thorough medical cxzamination at the Company's Clinic

("‘: to try and detcrminc the extent of ycur illness and

b what corrective measures can be taken, as €hc Company

would like to see you restored to a fit medical con-
dition so that your services can be relied cn.

I hope to see scme change in your attitude and attendance
as the above performance will not be tolerated much
longer."

“June 23, 19Cl

Subject: Absence tlithcut
Permission

You had to woxk over cn the 4 = 12 shift on Friday June
19 when Lawford Henry did not report for duty.

/’\

Because of this you absented yourself from work on ycur
regular 8-4 shift on Saturday June 20.

rehavicur of this nature cannot be tolerated as it
subjects your colleaguves and the organisation to much
inconvenience.

This letter, a copy of which is being placed on your
personnel file, sexves as a warning to ycu that any g
future breach of this nature will be scverely Qealt with. ™)
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The memo dated l4th September, 1981 terminating his employment was a
predictable climax.
Of course, the plaintiff maintains that he challenged the
- adverse comments in the memos prior to the cone dismissing hii, but not
- in writing. The cross-examination was ungpeadng, in the endeavour to
show that cn the plaintiff's recoxrd the defendant had just causce to
terminate his employment. Many incidents wefe cxplored but the position
is so well crystallized in the admission forced from the plaintiff that
it is not necessary tc cxaminc them all, This is what he had to say:-
"¥Yes, I am saying my attondance xocord was very
pocy but it was due to illnoss. This was not
sc regarding my whole carecr put only when I
got ill. Yes, generally my attendance was very

moor but it was due to illness.

Yo nct my contenticn that the company was chbliged
to put up with this sort of attendance indefinitely.
Mo, don't agree in September, 1931 the Company was
entitled fo say we can’t put up with this scrt of
attcndancezgonger even though supported by medical
certificate because I don't have any control over
my health. I weuld think that instead of dismissal
they would make me mediceally redundant.”

Detectable here is the feeling that the company would be coming
soon to the end of its endurance at which stage the plaintiff would be
made medically redundant with certain benefits to him. He certainly
did not think of a dismissal but he has pointed to nothing in the terms
of his employment which would justify his expectations. But the ccompany
did not rely on the plothiora of medical certificates produced by the
plaintiff to inform itscl{ of the state of tho plaintiff's health. There
were periodic medical examinations. The results of five such records
in the agreed Bundle arc set out hereunder:

12.6.73 Apparcently Lealtly adult male

with no significant abnormal
findings, Tit to continue

N

working.
6.1.75 Fit for sexvicce
19.1.77 Apparently healthy man with

Tinea Veirsicolor.
27.3.77 rFit,.

8.1.01 Apparently hecalthy male acdult
with Tinca pecdis.®
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The final report which was the result of a Special Examination requested
by the company and done on 10th Scptember, 1981 rcads -

"Fit.

1ild hypertension on treatment

by Dr, Dennett (lack River)

Ippearance: healthy.”
It is a matter of rccord that although thic company maintained a Health
Clinic at Spur Troe, the plaintiff frequently wont to doctors in Black
River, Malvern, Junction and Mandeville. In rclation to the gquestion
of absenteeism, the plaintiff testified that when a Superviscr was absent
scmeone clse had to porform his duties but tic absentee was still paid.
It would not, thorefore, require any stretcl: ¢f the imagination to
understand that abscntecism was to the ccmpany’s detgimont in more ways
than one.

It is the defendant's contention tlat the high freguency of
absences by the plaintiff was by far the worst among Supecrvisors in the
defendant’'s amploy -- certainly the worst in the Production Department
and much greatcr than the average acceptable witlhin the plant as well as
in the industxy as a whole. Alsc, the fact that the Supervisors who
were being adversely affccted by the plaintiff's absences were unhappy
about the situatiocn bhad been brought to the plaintiff's attention but
to no avail.

E company Supcrintendent, Claude B. Stewart testified that the
alpart Plant with respect teo design capacity was the third largest such
plant in the world. The plaintiff had been a Day Supervisor which was
a highexr paid job than the shift Superviscr and it was noticed that
after he changed from Day te Shift Superviscr in 1974 his attendance rate
becane very poor. In a ;plant of that size and at & time when emphasis
wvas on improving thce cost efficiency of thie plant, the plaintiff's level
of absence was an aggravating factor. What scemed to have attracted
the attention of the defendant was the fact that thie medical certificatces
to cover the plaintiff's days off were not issucd by the company's doctors
but by other doctoxs in the arca. According to Ix. Stewart the Special

iMedical Report was roquested because having regard to the Annual Reports

281
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and these other certificates there was no pattern and no consistency in
his treatment for any particular ailment.

The dismissal was precipitated by the fact thaﬁ on Saturday
12th September, 193l he arrived for woxl 1 hogrs late. Mr. Stewart
surmoned him to his office and had a discussion with him pointing out to
him that because he was late others had to cover for him. He was
accordingly placed on Suspension and directed to report to Mr. Stewart's
officevon the following lionday for a decision and when he did he received
his letter of dismissal effective 12th September, 198l. But prior to
that he had been recquested to attend at the Company's Clinic for the
Special Medical Iixamination on lOth September, 1981, This was done
when after three (3) days absence he had re-appeared with a medical
certificate from Dr. Jennett (Zlack River) grantiné hir three days leave
from 6th September, 1981 on the ground of his suffering from gastro-
enteritis. According to Mr. Stewart e discussed the plaintiff's
records with the witness' senior officer and the Human Resources Departront.
after which the decision was made "to terminate his employment based on
his overall performance as it relates to his problem of absentecism".
In?%?cw of this witness, also having recgard to the plaintiff's annual
medical reports as well as the Special Report dated 1llth September, 1981 -
all of which showed liim to be fit and able to carry out his duties -- there
would be no justification for considexing liim for medical redundancy.

Evidence of a gathering storm would lhave been evident to an
alert worker who was not hoping to be made medically rxedundant! Further
evidence of the company's concern over the plaintiff's absences was given
by Mr. Osmond W. NWation, Production Superintendent and Mr. Wesley Vernon,
Haintenance Co~ordinator, both of whom had on occasions spoken to the
plaintiff - Dut what could they hope to achieve when the plaintiff's
attitude was ~

"I considered all expressions of concern ~ oral ox

written - from 1977 to time of dismissal as being
without merit.®



Having regard to the ground for dismissal wlhich is already adequately
ventilated it will not be necessary to review all the incidents related
by the witness. It will be sufficient to mention just a few. Wesley
Vernon testified that on Christmas Eve 1979 tlie plaintiff requested

two hours to do shopping. The witness volunteered to work for the
plaintiff and gave him instead 4 hours telling him to return to work at
8.00 p.m. The plaintiff did not return and as a consequence the witness
had to work the whole shift. He said that when he next saW the plaintiff
and questioned him about his behaviour he said he had had trouble with
two of his car tyres. The explanation was not believed and he verbally
reprimanded the plaintiffi thcea the plaintiff was cross-—-examined as to
this he could recall no such incident.

Again in April 1981, about 12.00 noon one day, while Vernon
acted temporarily as Superintendent the plaintiff requested permission
to be absent because of donestic problems. Vernon told him he could
not leave until sevcral problems whicl they had at the time were resolved.
However, at about 2.10 p.m. when matters were worsc the plaintiff was
seen by Vernon leaving his woixk area and all efforts to make contact with
him proved futile. The matter was reported to lix. Hay, Superintendent
in the Slurry Mix Department who in Vernon's presence upbraded  the
plaintiff for his irresponsible behaviour and cauticned better conduct for
the future. The plaintiff again could not xecall such an incident and
specially denied leaving worlz as testified by Vcrnon.

June 1981 was to witness another incident which questions the
plaintiff's credit and challenges his work attitude. Bbout the details
of this occasion there is great conflict. The plaintiff had been absent
from work for two déys without permission. Hle said that he had sent a
message on the first day but lhie did not say how. Vernon said the
plaintiff telephoned him from an in-plant telephone on 26th June, 1981
requesting him to inform Mr. Hay that he was having a hearing problem and
had been to a doctor at Spuxr Tree whe had said nothing was wrong with him

so he would be going to another doctor. On 29tl June. 1981, Vernon was



despatched by Mr. Hay to Southfield in search of the plaintiff whom he
located at a bar operated by lLim. There is conflict about what happcned
there. The plaintiff accounts for his presence at the bar on the ground
that his home was being re-furbished and sc he was in temporxarv residence
in a2 room attached to the bar and had just rcturned from the doctor in
Llack River along with his wife shortly beforc Vernon's arrival. It is
agrced that he handad.. Vernon a Medical Certificate from Dr. Bennett,

The nature of his illness was not indicated. The doctor allowed the
plaintiff four (4) days sick leave.

FPurther, Vernon said the plaintiff's car was parked in front of
the bar with the trunk 1id cpen and that crates of beer and other stuff
were being unlecaded from the car. The plaintiff recalled the car being
there but nothing more about it. Alsc he deniced telephoning Vernon as
the lattex had testificed. Denicd also was Vernon's covidence that in
answer to his quexry the plaintiff had said ¢ was suffering from an carache.

Mr., Patterson obvicusly appreciatoed tihic significance of£ this
evidence and in his effort to dgscredit the witness. suggested that there
was no such incident in June and that if there had been any such incidoent
it was in May. put he had to withdraw the suggestion. The witness had
no difficulty in maintaining his stand. Guite apart from the fact that
the medical certificate bore the date 28th June; 1981 therc was the
notation beside the witnesslsignature "Received 29.6.81", If the
plaintiff's version that bhe had just returned from the doctor is correct
why is the certificate dated 28th June, 1981 and not 29th June, 19817
I have no difficulty in rejecting the plaintiff's versiocn as untruc and
accepting Vernon's versicn. Vernon further testified that the plaintiff
was absent from work on the 2nd and 3rxd July, 1981 and that when he did
return to work he was reprimanded by Hay in Vernon's presence. This also
is denicd but I xeject that denial.

Implicit in the plaintiff's contention that he should have been
made medically redundant nust be an admission that there was some chrenic

cr frequently recurring medical conditicn which reduced the state of hig
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health to less than the acceptable standard for the plant or the industry.
In this regard it is plain that while the medical certificates do seem
to run the gamut of ailments they do not disclege any such disabling condition.
Then, too, the annual noedical rexaminations which passed him fit for work
fail to detect any such condition. Why then did the plaintiff entertain
such expectation? Since it was not based on iis medical record it would
seon to be related to his attitude to his job cx some other not-so~obvicus
factor.

The perspectivce in which the plaintiff's case was presented is
reflected in the following submissicns by Mr. Patterson.

"1, The antitlement of a worizer when his services
arc being terminated becadse be is found to
be medically unfit are vastly superioxr to those
whexe the services cf an amployee are being
deternined summarily for cause on medical grounds.

2. The serxvices of an employee are not to be
sunmarily determined on medical grounds except
that it be shown that the purported reasons
advanced by the employce from time to time for
his absence from work on medical grounds are
found to be spurious and merely a resprt to
malingering,

3. In the instant case if the defendant came to the
decided view that having regard to previcus absences
by tiie plaintiff on medical grounds he should no
longer continue in the anployment of the Company
they cught to have had reports of prevailing
conditicns of employment and grievance procedure
which would have entailed subjecting the plaintiff
to amedical examinaticn and if tle report supported
their conclusion they cculd have terxrminated his
scxvices becausc he was mnedically unfit; but in
such a case he would have been entitled to nctice
and severance pay. "

. Williams cbjected to any reliance on breach of Grievance Procedure
without it being raised in thce Pleadings but I hekd that paragraph 8 (supra)
of the Statement of Claim covered tle submission. Mr., Patterson drew

support for his submissions from East Lindsey District Council vs. Daubney

(1977) 1 C.R, 566,

In that case an employce who had been absent fronm work for long periods
because of illness was dismissed on the grounds of permanent ill health.
A nmeadical report had been obtained arfl acting cn the doctcrds recommendation

that he should be retired on the grounds of pexmancent ill healtl, he was
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served notice and retired. Complaint was made by the employee of unfair
dismissal because he had not been afforded an opportunity of influencing the
decision. An industrial tribunal found th#t although his inability to
pexform his quties was a reason justifying his dismissal within the relevant
provisions, nevertheless the manner ¢f the dismissal was unfair in that

ti:z employers had failed to cbtain a full medical zoport before dismissing
him and that they had dismissed l.im without giving Vim the right to discuss
the situation with them or to seck an independent nedical opinion.
Accordingly. the tribunal found the dismissal unfair. It was held,
dismissing the employers appeal -

1. That, altiough it was not tli¢ function of
employers oxr of industrial tribunals to act
as a medicalappeals tribunal to zcview
advice reccived from medical advisers, the
decision whether or not to dismiss an employee
was not a medical question but had to ke taken
by cmployers, in the light of available medical
advice which should be requested in such a way,
as to enable then to make an informed decision;
that a report merely stating that an employec
was unfit to carry out his duties and should
be retired on the ground of permanent ill health
was verging on the inadequate but in the circum-
stances, the report would have been sufficient
to have enabled the employcrs to act on it after
they had discussed the situation with the
amployec.

2. That except in exceptional circumstances employers
shoculd take such steps as were sensible in the
circumstances to consult the enployee and infoxm
thamselves of the true medical position before
dismissing him on tiwe ground of ill health; that
since ti.c cmployee was not consulted the dismissal
was uafaix.

Quite plainly the facts and the grounds of dismissal in in Daubney's casc
are different from thosce in tle instant case. Clear points of distinction

to be borne in mind are the difference in the grounds for dismissal and

the manner in which the decision to diswiss was arxived at. In Daubmey's

case the dismissal was based on a medical ground and was, largely speaking,
the dacision of the doctor. Whereas in the instant case the employers
sedulously avoided the medical route and took the decision themselves.

The submissions seem more appropriate tc a dismissal based on ill-

health than to any other case, The only relevance, so far as I can

see, 1s support for the suggestion that where there is a grievance
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pkrocedure, save for exceptional circumstances, even where there arc adequate
grounds for dismissal, the emplcyer may be held to have acted unfaixly if
the grievance procedure is not followed.

The next step, thercfore, is to ascertain what, if any, grievance
procedure was provided forxr in the terms cf employment of the plaintiff.
Imnediately one is confronted with the difficulty, as the plaintiff testified,
that there was no writing setting out the terms of his employment. From
lr. Patterson's opening it was patent that he was r»elying on the grievance
procedure in the Collcctive Labour Agreement but he was rebuffed by the
specific provisicn in that agreement which excluded non-unionised cmployecs.
Was the plaintiff awarc of any grievance proccdurce relating to non-unionised
staff? In dealing with the memc dated 20th August, 1979 from Mr. lNation
he gaid that he disputed the allegations therein and secured from Mr. MNation
an acceptance of his explanation but nevertheless lixr. Nation insisted that
the mamo would remain on the plaintiff's file =~ a course which would, and
did in fact, operate to the prejudice of the plaintiff. Asked whether he
did write about it he saild nc becuase there was nc one to whom he could +
make a formal complaint. Hce cxplained that steps werc heing taken to provide
such machinery for the bencfit of supervisors but at that time it had not
yet been formalised. However, said he, a machincry was set up before his
dismissal but he could not give the relevant date. And to demonstrate
how unprotected thc supervisors weme at that time he said that had there
been far more damaging allegations in the memo, all he could do was to £
go to Mr. Nation's boss, M. Herschell Foxd, the Production ianager.
However, the situation must have improved because within two days of being
dismisscd he addressed a letter to Mr, Erid VWest, Human Resources Managoer
as follows:

"Dear 3ir,

his is to inforxm you that my services with
NMpart wvere terminated on the 12th instant.
In my opinion I was wrongfully dismissed and
I om not satisfied, therefore I am grieving the case
with you.
Yours tiuly,
G. H. Foster."

Ha
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What is the grievance procedurc that he was thus sceking to activate?
Pid he do all that he an aggrieved person was required to do to obtain
raodress? For answers onc must look to the terms of such grievance
procedure, if indeed there was one. The plaintiff dd not give evidence
of having done anything elcc to secure redrcss and apart from the documents
introduced in the Supplemental Agreed bundle the only other -evidence
relating tc any grievance procedure was given by lx. Wesley Vernon. He
said he was not much acquainted with the matter. s far as he recalled a
committec had becn sct up to deal with situations Lut he did not know
lww effective that had bean. It is unfortunate that this witness was not
asked to relate either of the two documents in the Supplemental Agreed
bundle to this committee of which he spoke. As it i, therecfore, there is
only this passing reference to the committee which: cannot assist in the
scarch for an answer. However, because the name We.EBrxic West appears in
the second document, thoﬁgh the title differs, it scoms more likely that
the provisions of this document were being invoked. This can only be
provigions
stated as a likelihood because the plaintiff made no refexence to such/nox
did he give any indication that he knew of the existence of any such
machinery. Addressod toc “All Salaried Employcas, Alpart, Nain® on the
subject "Problen Handling salaried Employees™ it rcads:-

¥ INT0DUCTION

over the last few weeks, an experimental procedure
has been developed for dealing with problems
arising from the worliplace. The ideas incorporated
in this Procedure were mainly yours .... how you
sec them as an Alpart Policy. I thank you for
your contribution.

POLICY
It is Alpart's purpsse to protect the dignity and
security of its salaried professional people
thxough a disciplined, controlled access to all
levels of management when dealing with intexr-~
personal relationships.

PURPCSE
To ensure all salaried amployees prompt, consistent

and impartial and unprejudiced resoluticon of
problems and/or complaints.



PROCEDURE

1.

2.
3.
4.

4.

.

/ i
5.
6.
7.

It is the employee's responsibility to bring his/
her prcblem to Management's attention promptly,
starting with his/her immediate supervisor.

£ the immediate supervisor fails tc satisfy the
employee in a reascnable period of time, the
employce must carry the pxoblem on "up the line®
to the Hanager, if necessaxy.

At eacl: step "up the line®, notes shcould be kept
cf eacl: mecting. including promised dates for
resclution of the problem.

If the Department Head (ilanager) fails to resolve
the problem, the employee may request a hearing
with a represéntative from the Personnel Section
(currently Mr. Eric West).

(4) The Personnel representative is required to
contact the employce's supervisor and line
organizatlon in order to force communicaticas.

() The Personnel represcntative is required to
teep records/notes of all meetings or related
activities.

If the Personnel representative fails to resclve
the problem, he may convene the "Working Consulta=-
tive Committee", whose function will be to hear
the case and recommend by ccnsensus, a proper
solution to the appropriate Department Head.

(.) This Committee consists of (1) Personnel
representative (Mr. West as Chairman);
(2) Member of the line selected by the
Department Head; (3) A peer of the com-
plainant to be agreed upon by (1) and (2)
abcve, and the employee.

() The Committece must make its recommendation
imnediately following the hearing.,

If the Department Head cannct accept the recommendas
ticn, or the emplovee is nct satisfied, either can
request a second hearing by the "General Consulta-
tive CommitteeY, which ccnsists of (1) Personncl
repraesentative; (2) Special designate by the

General Manager; (3) Humfn ilesources Manager
(Chairman); and (4) a Superintcendent selected by
the employee (The Personnel represcntative has no
vote).

The findings of this Committec:
() May be delayed up to tlixee (3) days.

() May not be over-ridden except by Plant
Manager cor Mining & Port Manager.

If either the employee, the Plant Manager or the
Mining and Port Manager cannct accept the findings
of the "General Committee", the matter may be
referred to the General Manager for final decision.
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8. The General Manager may at Iis discretion call on
any cutside assistance in arriving at a prompt decision.
PRECAUTIONS
1. Wherever pessible, an appropriate employee action may
’ be "Suspension Pending Investigation", thus allowing
<"“i this procedure to fully opcrate.
)]
2. This Procedure is to be used without prejudice.
3. ¥rompt acticn at each step is zecuired.
. Confidentiality is mandatoxy!’

Octobex 19, 1979;°¢

With referencc to this document the submissicns of the opposing
attorneys are poles apart. Mr. Williams submitted -

(a) It was the duty of the plaintiff to pursue
- he grievance progedure as set out in the
<: cdlocument.

b) There is no evidence to satisfy the Court that
this grievance procedure is legally binding on
the parties, It is a letter from the General
Manager to All Salaried Tmployecs. No evidence
it was ever used. The plaintiff did not
apparently know of it because he was doing .everything
cucaopt to pursue the gricvance procedure.

In this regard it is important to refer to the evidence of the Producticn
Manager, Mr. Claude D. Stewart. Referring to the document undexr considera-
tion he said =

At time of plaintiff's dismissal Alpart had a
grievance procedure. Not sure whethexr plaintiff
followed procedure set out. It is thce employec's
responsibility to follow procedure. ™

In cross=examination he further testified -

"Grievancce Proceduxe is as in the moano. He should
have brougit his complaints to Committee comprised
of the Human Resources Manager, someonc from his
Department (Manager) and cother persons named there.
Yes the Grievance procedure is invigilated by the
Manager cof the Human Resources Department.

<‘ﬁ\ (Referring to plaintiffl's letter Jdated 16.9.81 to ;
- Mr. Eric Viest he said).

"Yes that letter is sufficient to trigger the
Grievance Procedure. Not in a position to say

why following upon this letter the Grievance Procedure
was not followed."

His evidence seems to run counter to Mr. Williams' submission that the

company was not shown to have felt itself bound by these provisions.
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Dut it is apparent that Mr. Stevart was not well accuainted with the
provisions of the document becausc his evidence contradicts its express
provisions as to how the procedure s activated and works. This would
tend to suggest that it was not a much used procedure. Hence the
plaintiff's apparent ignorance on the mattex. Despite Iix. Stowart's
testimony it is obvious that the plaintiff did nct Jdo as he was
recquired to get the benefit of the Grievance Procedurec.

Despite the plaintiff's apparent ignorance of these two documents
referred to in the supplemental aAgreoed Dundle Mr. Patterson welccmed them
with open arms and submitted -

"That they represent the standard practice relating
to salaried staff and are the express terms of the
amployment. A Collective Labour Agrcement has the
force of Law (see J.I,C. v. N,i1.U.)

Company now estopped  from contending that these
documents are not the operative terms and no case
could be advanced to contrwvert. The right to
suspend does not exist at Common Law and if
exercised, as it was in this case; then it is clear
the company could only have done so within the
framewoxl: which was the subject of agreement
between the company and the employees. This should
justify the Court in concluding that these documents
were in existence and honoured as governing their
relationship.

Alternatively, these documents set out the procedure
and guidelines which the Company undertook to follow
in cases sucihi as the instant one. - Failure so to do
rclevant to the question of the dismissal being
justified. (Sce Daubpey's Case = gupra)."”

The defendant was not presented as having no social conscience,
an accusaticn it certainly could nct escape, if large and prestigious as
it is, it operated contrary to the modern trend in social legislation
and efforts towards industrial peace in that it had no provisions for
dealing with grievances. Dut acceptance of Mr. Williams' submissions on
this document would lead to the denial of its purpose, that is, the provision
of a machinery for the handling of problems among a vexry important section
of the Alpart work force. What is more, it is made plain in the introduc-
tion that the machinery is the result of a consensus between Alpart and the
relovant workers with whom the ideas mostly originated. Reason, therefore,

favours its acceptance as constituting terms of employment of the Salaried

staff.
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The other document dealing with "Employment Termination -

Salaried Employees” is not consensual by nature. Stamped "rPolicy/

Procedure® it is signed as to the Policy Section by the General Manager

and as to the Procedure Section by the Industrial Engineering Manager,

(: : The HManager, Administrative Systems, the Industrial Relations Manager and

the Operations Manager -~ a wholly company document backed by much authority.

The Policy Section so far as is

relevant is set cut hereunder:-

1. The services of Salarxied Zmployees may be
terminated either voluntarily or involuntarily.

A. Vecluntary Termination is termination of

ecmployment by employec action.

1.

cnployees who voluntarily resign shall
be expected to give one month's notice

<l“ in advance of the resignation date.

L. Involuntary Termination is termination of
employment by Company action.  Involuntary
termination may be occasioned by:

1. poor job performance;
2. misconduct;
3. sericus cause or other reasons prejudicial
to the Company;
4, age or disability;
5. reduction in the Company's woxk force; or
6. end of a temporary employment.
2, On Termination of emplcyment, salaried employees
T will be paid regular salary toc the date of the
(\»” termination.

3. SEVERANCE PAY will be allowaed salaried emplcyees
whose employment is permancently terminated due to
"Company Convenicnce®. Employment may be
permanently terminated at "Company Convenicnce®
because of;

(a)
®)
(c)

(d)

4 -

* .

cut back in opexration;
discontinuance of certain business activities;
age or disability wherc the employee is
not eligible for retirement or disability
benefits under company programmes; oY
elimination of a jol withi neo comparable
position available in the Company ox
affiliated Companies at their various
locations.

5. Severance Pay will not be allowed employeas who :

(a)
®)

(<)
()

was discharged for scrious cause cr other
reasons prejudicial to the Ccmpany;

° - . .



€. Th:e Industrial Relations Department will be
responsible for co-cordinating all employece
actions or Company action which "line"”
management may find nccessary to initiate,

( ) 7.  GUIDELINES
i. Superintendents/Supcrvisors will council

iii.

<
(S

theoiy staff at intervals of not less than
three (3) months. owevex, in instances
where there are infringments of Company
olicies, nmisconduct, serious cause ox cther
reasons prejudicial te the Company an
immediate enquiry must be held and the
department head informed in writing.

Written summaries of ccunselling and/cx
enquiries must be subnitted to Industrial
Relations Department for placing on the
cmployees: file within ten (10) days of the
counselling session cx enquiry.

If an adverse report about the employee is
written, the emplcyce must be given the
opportunity of sceing it before it is placed
on his file, If he wishes to reply, his
reply must be in writing and placed on the
file. The reply must be submitted within
seven (7) days of the employee seeing the
report.

Disciplinary action must be administered as a
corrective measure rather than as a punitive
measure.,

It is the Policy c¢f the Company to provide a
career pattern for all its employees and to
encourage their development and growth within

the Company. If disciplinaxry action is
contemplated, depending on the nature of the
cffence and the quaility of the employce's

scervice, the employec, wherever possible may

e given the opportunity to serve in ancther
section or department, prcvided there is a vacancy
in that section oxr department.

In cases where dismissal is contemplated the
superintendent/Supcrvisor should first reviow
the circumstances witl: Iiis department head and
the Industrial Relations department befoxe final
action to temminate is taken.

Disciplinary action sliould
cf the working day for the
being disciplined.®

be taken at the end
employee who is

The relevant clause in the Section on 2rocedure reads:

"superintendent/

Supexvisor

Meets with Dcpartment ilead and Industrial
Relations Department and reviews circum-
stances regarding disciplinary action.”
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Nothing in this document is subject tc negotiation and, unlike the other
document, there is no indicaticn it was circulated. However, nc issue
was made of this. ind indeed, rather than repudiating it Mr. Patterson

embraces it as disclosing terms of employment. Nox does Mr. Williams

repudiate it. Indeed cn the evidence of Mr, Stewart it would appear that the

decision to dismiss was taZen in accordance with the provision under
Procedure (supra).

Having regard to the evidence Mr. Patterson conceded that he is
not contending that the defendant company was cbliged to put up with the
plaintiff's irregular attendance indefinitely. Uhat he is contending is
that the summary dismissa} of the plaintiff is wxong there being no notice
nor any epportunity to present his side of tlhe issue. FIn the result, he
submitted, the plaintiff is entitled to the reliefs claimed. What he is
unhappy about is the manner in which the texmination of the employment was
effcected. There should have been consultation followed by medical
redundancy which he submitted carries superior benefits for the employec
tc terminaticn cthexwise.

In Spencer vs. Paragon Wallpapers Ltd. (1976) 1.C.R. 301 the

plaintiff had been summarily dismissed on the ground of incapacity due to
ill-health. The plaintiff appealed from the finding of the Industrial
Tribunal uphelding the dismissal. The Fmployment Appeal Tribunal dismissed
the appeal holding - inter alia:- |

"That in the case of a dismissal on the ground of
abscence due to ill-health, there should be some
form of communication between the employer and the
ennloyee before the employee was dismissed for
incapacity; that usually the communication should
be a discussion between the parties so that the
situation could Le weighed up beaxing in mind the
emplover's need for the work to be done and the
employcee's need for time in which to recover his
healtl:; ®

it was said too that -

“Evexy tase depends on its own cixcumstances. The
hasic cuestion which has to be determined in every
case is whether in all the circumstances, the
employer can be expected to wait any longexr, and
if go. bow much longer,¥
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A point to note is that this casc dealt with a matter of protracted ill-
health of the employee who would require ancther six (6) weeks rest before
he could resume work at a time when there was an unexpected increase in
demand for the employer’'s product. Accordingly the employer had to take
immediate action.

Although in the instant case the ground for dismissal as stated
in the memo was not incapacity due to ill-healtl. but ™the fact that youxr
Personnel Record over the years has not been good® 4he principles stated
in the Paragon Case may lhear some relevance. 2And; indeed, the record
shows that on numerous ¢ccasicns during the relevant period there had been
consultations, counselling. reprimand and finally the warning contained
in the memo dated Junc 23, 1901 -~

“Cenavicur of this nature cannot be tolerated as it
suljects your cclleagues and the crganisation to
rmuch inconvenience. This letter., a copy of which

is being placed on your perscnnel file, serves as a
warning to you that any future hreach of this nature
will be severcly dealth witbh."

This was an occasion when the plaintiff did not report for duty

when he should. He could be left in no doubt that the company regarded

his absences very seriously but his attitude was that he was not responsilble

for the state of his health and as long as he prosented certificates to
account for his absences that ought to satisfy the company. AaAnd althcugh
he did not take part in the final discussions which led to the dismissal he
has not in ewidence disclosalanything which had it been advanced in
consultation could have influenced the decision taken.

It is observed that in the document dealing with employment
termination the employce whe voluntarily terminates his/her employment
is required to give one month's notice. Not so where termination is
by the company.

The ground for dismissal is in all probability related to one
oxr more of the first threc items listed under Involuntary Termination.
Ividence was given that when the plaintiff was on the job his performance
was good and he was cerBtified as fit for promotion. The problem was

with his failure to perform due to persistent absences. Iut the level
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of absenteeism was nct by any evidence equated with poor job performance. Nox

was it stated to be misconduct. However, it should not be Qifficult tc

relate it tc "sericus causc or other reasons prejudicial to the Company®.
The learned authoxr of Chitty on Contracts 24th Editicn at

paragraph 3622 sets out the common law position on misconduct thus:-

"Where the employee is gquilty of sufficient misconduct
in his capacity as an employee he may be dismissed
surmarily without notice and bhefore the expiration

of a fixed period of employment. (Eoston Deep Sca
Fishing Cc. v. Ansell (1888) 39 ch.D. 339). &although
tie power of dismissal in these circumstances may be
Ly virtue of an implied term in the contract it is
alsc possible to view it as a power to rescind the
contract upon a repudiatcry Lreach of contract
comnitted by the employece. There is no rule of law
defining the degree of misconduct which will justify
dismissal (Clcuston & Co., vs. Corxxy (1906) A.C. 122).
The test to be applied must vary with the nature of tle
business and the position held hy the employee and
reported cases are thereforec cnly a general guide.

The general rule is that if the amployee does anything
which is incompatible with the due ox faithful
discharge of his duty to his employer, he may be
dismissaed without notice (Sinclaix v. Neighbour (1967)
2 0,5, 279); the employee's conduct need not be dis-
honest since it is sufficient if it is "conduct cf
such a grave and weighty character as to amount to

a breach of the confidential relationship® between
employer and employee.”

The evidencc demonstrates the critical importance of the
plaintiff's time~related job in an enterprisc of such magnitude and
nature; so that whether his conduct falls under item 2 or 3 (supra) it is
liable to be visited with dismissal without notice. Inasmuch, therefore,
as the two documents in the Supplemental Agreed Dundlce are embraced as
supplying terms of the plaintiff's employment hec cannot be heard to say
Lie was unaware of the company's policy. Dut even if at scme stage he could
plead ignorance. he would have only himself to blame if his ignorance
persisted after the several warnings and reprimands. He had sufficient
notice that he was toying with the possibility of dismissal.

Mx. Pattcrson is of thé opinion that though his record of
absenteeism was very poor yct he ought to have been given notice failing
which he is entitled tc pay in licu therecf. Tut this‘view ignores the
provisions for Involuntary Temination which makes no provision for

notice.
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Ipart fzom the cascs already nenticned other cases were cited

dealing with absentceisim and dismissal witlhicut notice.

Intexnaticnal Sports Ce. Ltd. vs. Thtmbon {1580)

1l B, L.R, 340 is & casc in which the respondent
enployee was dismissed without notice for persistent
absenteeisn. for the last 13 months of ler cmploy-
ment she was abscent on average for about 25% of the
time., The agreed acceptoble level was 8%. [ost
abscices were covered with medical certificates
listing a great varicty of ailments.

Persistent abscntceeism was an offence under the
company 's disciplinary procedure. The rgspondent
was warned on several occasions and it was made
clear that if there was no improvament dismissal
could result.

Before deciding to dismiss the company reviewed
her medical history with company doctor &nd it was
obgexved that there was no link between the various
ailments and her illncesses were not of a nature which
could be subsequently vexified. The doctor adviscd
that in these circumstances no usceful purpcse would
bhe scrxrved by exomining her,

The Employment Ippeal Tribunal overturned a
finding by an Industrial Tribunal of unfair Jdismissal.
It held that -

“The Industrial Tribunal had erred in holding

that the appellant (company) had acted

unrcascnably in dismissing the respondent

cmployee for porsistent sickness abscncc without
carrying out the procedure of investigaticn and
consultation rocuire

due te ill~healtl.

.

Jd in cases of incapability

there an amployec hias an unacceptable lovel
of absenteeism due to minor ailments what is
required firstly, that there should be a fair
review by the employcr of the attendance recoxd
and the reasons fox it; and secondly, appropriate
warnings after the employec has been given an
opportunity to make xepresentations. If there
is no improvement in the attendance rccoxd, in
most cases the employer will be justified in
treating the persistent absences as a sufficient
reason for dismissing thce employee.”

A further appeal against this decision was unsuccessful.

This casc bears very close resamblance to the instant case in
the medical history of the employee and tlie manner in which she was treoated
by the employer and finally in the ground for dismissal - pexsister
absenteeism. Dut indeed in the instant casc the employers haddonc wore

than was done¢ in the International Sports case in that they had an up~to-

date medicat asscsspent of the employee.
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Another case in similar vein is -

"Rells-Royce Ltd. vs. Walpole (1980) 1 R,L.R., 343.
The enployee had worked for the company for 7 ycars
hefore lie was dismissed because of poor attendance
record, During the last 3 yeaxrs of his employment
his rate of absence was 24%, 4<5% and 44%. Almost
all thesce absences were certified by a doctor as
being due to sickness or injury. He was counselled,
secn by the company doctor and warned about his
attcendance., It he persisted in absenting himsclf
and whs dismissed.

Ty & majerity . the. Appeal Tribunal allowed the
erployer's appeal against the finding of the Industrial
Trilbunal that the dismissal was unfair. The Trxibunal
echoed the rhetorical cucstion posced to it by the
appellant's counsel “what clsc in all the circumstances
could the amployers do? . . . . M o .
the two of us are quite satisfied that the cnployer"
response in the circumstances of the present case to
dismiss the employee was well within the range of
responses which reasonable amployers could have taken
having regard to equity and substantial merits of the
case, in treating the employee's poor attendance
recoxrd after warning as a sufficient redson for
dismissing him."

These are remarks which I consider very appropriate to the facts and

circumstances of this case.

Earl v. Slater & Vheeler (Adrlyne TLitd, (1973) 1 All E.R, 144

is another casc on which x. Patterson relied in submitting that the
failure of the Company to implement the clear provisions of its own policy
for terminating employment ancd the handling of problems which may arisc
give rise to an obligation on the Court to consider whether in all the
circumstances dismissal was fair or justified oxr whether or not the
plaintiff has not been subjected to manifest injustice. In that case the
employee had received several verbal complaints from his emplcyers
regarding work. While the amployec was abscnt from work due to sickness,
the employers made certain discoveries which shiowed that the employec was
nct carrying out his work in a satisfactory mannex, on his return to work
the employers handed him a letter of immediate dismissal. The letter set
out reasons relating to tle uamployee's conduct oxr capability which the
employers considered as justification for dismissing him. No opportunity

was afforded the employce eithexr before or at the time of dismissal to

was

state his case and there/no grievance procedurc. The employee had no

valid answer to the employers! complaints but the camployers did not know

349
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that when they dismissed him, nor had they taken any steps to find cut.

An Industrial Tribunal dismissed the employce'’s claim for unfair dismissal

holding that in keeping with the relevant statutory provision it was not

open to them to find that the employce had beon unfairly dismissed sclely

because the procedure adopted by the employer had been unfair, when that

procedure had led to no injustice to the employece. Upon the employec

appecaling it was held.

(i) That the Tribunal had erred in holding that an
unfailr procedure which lod to no injustice was
incapable of rendering unfair a dismissal which
would otherwise be fair; the aemploycers at tihc
monent of dismissal could not and did not know
whether the employec could explain the matters
whiclh had been discovercd during his absence;
they had dismissed the amployee for a reason
which might or might not be sufficient accoxding
to whether the employee could ox could nct offer
an adequate explanation. Thus the Tribunal
should have found that thc amployee had been
unfairly dismissed.

(ii) 7The employce was not, however, entitled to
compensation. The only natter rendexing his
dismissal unfair had been hiis lack of opportunity
to explain matters which had been discovered during
his absence from woxk and on the accepted facts
he had no valid explanation to offer suspecting
those matters. Consequently the employers!
failure to give the cmployec an opportunity to
offer an explanation had caused the employce no
lecss. ®

Quite apart from the absence of a gricvance procedure in the

above-mentioned case it is chwvious that there is a fundamental diffcerence

between that and the instant case. Therc the employec had been condemned

without the benefit ¢f an explanation. Hexe the ground for dismissal is

a ground about which thexre had been mucl: consultation and communicaticn

between the parties over tiwe years during which time the attitude of th

cmployexr was made abundantly clear. So he has had ample opportunity not

only to explain but to amend what was clearly irksome conduct. From as far

back as 20th May, 1969 he had been disciplined for "Excessive Missing of

work ~ 20 days in 14 wecks by loosing 3 days pay. Additionally thare were

warnings for absenteeism. In those circumstances; if he has an explanation

whicli would render his dismissal wrongful he has managed to keep it a

sacret.
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The plea in paragraph 9 of tle Statement f Claim alleging a
breach of the Employment (Terminaticn and Redundancy Payments) Act has
neither been advanced hy evidence nor sustained Ly argument. The plaintiff
has not proved that he Las nct been paid the entitlements which appear
on the company's recoxds.

It is my opinidn that, having regard to all that was done by the
company tp have the plaintiff reduce his absenteeism to an acceptable
level, thds case provides a fitting cexample of the exceptional circumstances

contemplated by the second limb of the decision in Deubpey's Case insofar

as it relates to consultation with the employec, hccoxdingly, any failurec
to formally comply with a grievance procedure does not invalidate the
dismissal without notice. The company was in nmy judgment justified in
saying to the plaintiff "Enough is ehocugh® and so part company with him.

It follows that there can be no salary in lieu of notice since the

company was entitled te terminate without notice.

Whatever other classification may be applied to the ground for
dismissal it certainly cqualifies as "serious causc or other reasons
prejudicial to the company® for which it is specifically provided
(paxagraph 5 () of provisions for Employment Termination - Salaried
Fmployees) that no Severance Pay shali be allowed. Accordingly, this
claim fails.

There will therxcefore be judgment for the defendant with costs
to be taxed if not agreed.

Defore parting with the case I would like to commend the
attorneys-at-law for the keeness with which the issues were contested and
the assistance rendexed the Court. The commendable efforts of the
plaintiff's attoxneys to improve the lot of the amployee is no less
praiseworthy than the ?ersistence of the defendant's attorneys in
expounding and supporting what they believe to be the law of the land. and .
even if the issues were not easy to resclve the presentations made the case

nonetheless an interesting one.

o



